
 

 

 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach , FL 33460 

561.586.1600 

  
AGENDA 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 18, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL: 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: led by Mayor Betty Resch 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Vice Mayor Herman Robinson 

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering: 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

A. Anti-racism Proclamation 

B. Presentation by Jervonte Edmonds, CEO & Founder of Suits for Seniors 

C. Presentation by School Board Representative Erica Whitfield 

D. PBSO quarterly presentation by Captain Todd Baer 

E. Stormwater Flooding Presentation by Brian Shields, Water Utilities Director 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

A. Pre-agenda work session - December 22, 2021 

B. Regular Minutes, January 4, 2022 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items) 

A. Confirmation of Chair and Vice Chair to the CRA Board 

B. Resolution No. 05-2022 –  approving and authorizing the Mayor to execute the FY22 
DLIS ARPA Florida grant award 21-ARPA-16 for implementation of the Connecting 
Our Community program 

C. Resolution 06-2022 – Supporting and Adopting the Palm Beach County League of 
Cities’ Resolution regarding Lake Okeechobee System Operation Manual 

D. Change Order #2 – final with Foster Marine Contractors, Inc. for District 3, Year 3 
outfall project 

NEW BUSINESS: 



A. Work Order #8 with The Paving Lady for  paving work to be completed on 17th Ave N 
from N D St to the railroad tracks, 22nd Ave N and Park Street, and 21st Ave N from 
Park St to the dead end 

B. Resolution No. 07-2022 –  approve and authorize the submission of an application to 
EDA for grant funding under the ARPA Good Jobs Challenge 

C. Resolution No. 08-2022 – amending the City Commission’s Rules of Procedure 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT: 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 

January 25 - electric utility meeting 
January 26 - pre-agenda work session @ 9 AM 
January 26 - work session @ 4 PM 
February 1 - regular meeting 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The City Commission has adopted Rules of Decorum for Citizen Participation (See Resolution No. 25-
2021). The Rules of Decorum are posted within the City Hall Chambers, City Hall Conference Room, posted 
online at:  https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/government/virtual-meetings/, and available through the City Clerk’s 
office. Compliance with the Rules of Decorum is expected and appreciated. 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any 
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, 
for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which 
record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  (F.S. 286.0105) 



Suiting future leaders for lifelong 
success

SUITS FOR SENIORS



WHO WE ARE

OUR MISSION

We help at risk youth by providing them access to economic mobility, entrepreneurship, and life skills. Most 

importantly, we suit them for lifelong success.

OUR VISION

Build the next generation of leaders who live with purpose, self confidence, and the mindset to help change the world.



Programs

Senior Success Program

The purpose is to teach high school  students the importance of their educational career, personal 

finance,  and professionalism so they can maximize the amount of opportunities they take after 

high school. It will also help students to properly work towards their goals and vision for the future.

Career Center Expansion

The purpose of the Career Center is to help individuals obtain employment that will allow them to 

sustain their lives. Individuals will be able to come to the center and receive a suit, a resume 

building session, and a mock interview. After the individual has received these services then they 

will be able to receive help applying for a job. 

Suits For Seniors Online

Suits for Seniors college readiness and career exploration course is available online! Participating 

students will learn all about financial literacy, leadership, and career development, while also 

preparing to enter and succeed in college.



Senior Success Program

Outcomes
◼ 100% High School Graduation Rate

◼ 99% Avoid any criminal misconduct

◼ 95% Apply and receive FASFA

◼ 95% Are Accepted into College

◼ 90% Complete the first year of college

◼ 85% are currently employed

◼ 1 out of 3 are matched

◼ 1 out of 4 receive financial support

http://drive.google.com/file/d/1lhdzpTAOffq9IPmi0bpR2WyjXVL_eOSB/view
http://drive.google.com/file/d/1lhdzpTAOffq9IPmi0bpR2WyjXVL_eOSB/view


Career Center

Demographics
◼ 70% are age 26 - 39,  and 30% are 40 - 65

◼ 99% African American

◼ 80% have High School Diploma or equivalent

◼ 80% earn below $20,000

◼ 75% enter unemployed

◼ 65% have been previously incarcerated.

Outcomes
◼ 100% Receive professional attire

◼ 100% Connected to available jobs

◼ 90% Complete a career exploration course

◼ 90% Complete a personality test assessment

http://drive.google.com/file/d/1xP8cHew6tFuZpUoDv4gDH2GVWWUSEcBQ/view
http://drive.google.com/file/d/1xP8cHew6tFuZpUoDv4gDH2GVWWUSEcBQ/view


Mentoring

Mentors:                               Mentees:



Suits For Seniors Online

Vision
We are incorporating virtual instruction into our Suits for Seniors program which will allow us to serve more students, 

while also expanding our depth of curriculum. Our instructional Services offers an engaging, content-rich 8th grade -

College curriculum that can be customized to meet the unique needs of our students. Courses will be taught by our 

highly professional, industry-certified virtual instructors, and partners who focus on the skills needed to excel. With self-

paced learning and customizable delivery options, Instructional Services can offer our school or district additional 

flexibility and the support needed to ensure your implementation is a success.

● Leadership

● College Admissions

● Scholarships

● Financial Literacy

● Investments

● Career Preparation and Exploration

● Resume and Interviewing 

● Physical and Mental Health

● Healthy Eating Habits

● Interpersonal Relationships

● Entrepreneurship

● Anger Management

● Time Management

● Public Speaking 



Suits For Seniors Online 

Goals  
◼ Empower students to achieve their highest level of success through the use of elearning. 

◼ Further our relationship in hopes that Suits for Seniors will additionally move learning experiences into all of 8-

12. 

◼ To gain referrals into other corporate learning organizations for future business opportunities

◼ Transfer of information and Data.

Elearning 

https://sites.google.com/view/suitsforseniors/home



Our Partners



SUITS FOR SENIORS

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=EjNEcRFH0WM
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=EjNEcRFH0WM


Questions?



Contact

Jervonte Edmonds
info@suitsforseniors.org
321-604-7590

mailto:info@suitsforseniors.org


Stormwater Resiliency

Julie Parham, P.E.
Giles Rhoads, P.E.

Assistant Water Utilities Directors

Brian Shields, P.E.
Water Utilities Director



• Stormwater Impacts from 12/19/2021 event, over 4 inches of 
rain in very short duration

• Coincided with King Tides that occurred early that morning
• Experienced flooding in several areas of City, as did many 

municipalities around CLWB
• City ROW and stormwater system designed to handle 3-year 

storm. SFWMD guidance allows 25-year storm to accumulate 
in ROW and must recede within 72 hours; water receded in 
less than 24 hours!

Recent Extreme Storm Event:



Issues & Mitigation Strategies
Issue:
• STORMWATER FLOODING – Stormwater collection system is designed for 3-year 

event (3 inches). Takes system longer to drain the more intense storm, so water 
finds way to other places until it can be drained. Compounded by king tides, high 
groundwater, and intense rainfall.  

Mitigation Strategies for Worst Areas:
• Installation of tidal check valves to prevent king tide influence on storm system
• Reevaluate storm systems – check for blockages, televise lines.
• Stormwater pump stations, additional retention areas, underground storage 

chambers

Stormwater



Recent Projects:
• Tidal outfall check valve installations
• Drainage upgrades as part of Neighborhood Road

Program:
• District 1: Palmetto & S Ridge Rd, Virginia Drive
• District 2: 22nd Avenue North and N D St; 14th

Ave N from Central to Dixie; Florida St from 
Worthmore to 23rd Ave N; 

• District 3: Duke Drive and Holy Cross Lane, Georgia Lane and 
Furman Lane; 16th Ave N and N Lakeside, N M St; N K St from 14th

to 15th Ave N; Wellesley and 18th Ave N Resiliency projects
• District 4: S Lakeside Drive & 15th Ave S and Lakeside Palms Ct; 17th

Ave S east of S Lakeside, 1st Ave S
• Drainage improvements on Park of Commerce Phase 1A, 1B and 2
• Stormwater Master Plan Update 2016 by CDM Smith 
• Adopt-a-Drain program

TIDAL CHECK VALVE

Stormwater



Future Projects:

• Stormwater Master Plan updated in 2016 with reevaluations dated 2017, 2020 and 2021. Projects 
identified based on historical problem flood areas, modeling of system and stormwater quality 
improvements to reduce nutrient discharges to the Intracoastal and Lake Osborne - $21 million; 
portion of remaining projects are stormwater quality improvements

• Projects’ components:
• Underground storage at Bryant Park
• Increase lake size on golf course
• New outfall and upgrades to existing
• New inlets, culverts, catch basins, exfiltration trench, weirs

• Annual budget of $50k for tidal check valve install, repair, maintenance
• CLWB has consistently pursued grants and filed for state assistance for projects
• CLWB part of Coastal Resilience Partnership and Climate Change Compact that provide guidance on 

best management practices and collaboration and information sharing

Stormwater



Capital Projects:

Stormwater
Project Location Capital Cost Status

1
North Lakeside Drive, Duke Drive, Notre Dame Drive and 
Wellesley Drive, Federal Highway $       1,300,000 Partially Complete

215th Avenue North and N Dixie Highway $           574,000 

310th Avenue North to 13th Avenue North, E and F Streets $           735,000 

43rd Avenue North to 6th Avenue North and N F Street $       2,076,000 
56th Avenue South and South A Street $           380,000 

6
2nd Avenue North to 1st Avenue South, South F Street 
and Dixie Highway $       2,983,000 

7
Lake Avenue, 1st Avenue South, South M Street and 
Golfview Road $       3,011,000 

8
3rd Avenue South, 5th Avenue South, South Palmway and 
South Lakeside Drive $       3,411,000 

96th Avenue South and South F Street $           229,000 

1010th Avenue South and South G Street $           759,000 

1110th Avenue South and Dixie Highway $           528,000 

1210th Avenue South and South N Street $           528,000 

1318th Avenue South and South Palmway $           500,000

14Palmetto Avenue and South Pine Street $           171,000 Complete

15
15th Ave South, 17th Ave South, Lakeside Drive, 18th Ave 
South $       2,000,000 Partially Complete

16
16th Avenue North, 8th Avenue North, North Golfview 
Road $           601,000 

171st Avenue South storm repairs $           300,000 

18Annual lining & joint repairs $           100,000 

19Tidal check valve install/maintenance/repair $              50,000 

TOTAL: $     20,065,000 





END OF PRESENTATION



 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

CITY COMMISSION PRE-AGENDA WORK SESSION 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 22, 2021 - 9:00 AM 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 9:00 AM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0:14) Present were Mayor Betty Resch; Vice Mayor Herman Robinson and 

Commissioners Christopher McVoy (arrived at 9:02 AM) and Kimberly Stokes. ABSENT: 

Commissioner Sarah Malega. Also present were City Manager Carmen Davis, Assistant City 

Manager Juan Ruiz, City Attorney Christy L. Goddeau and Deputy City Clerk Shayla Ellis. 

UPDATES / FUTURE ACTION / DIRECTION (1:00) 

 

A. Possible agenda topics 

 

Action:  Consensus to add an ordinance addressing the procedures for board appointments to the 

January 18th regular commission meeting. 

 

Action:  Consensus to have William Waters, Community Sustainability Director, and Erin Sita, 

Community Sustainability Assistant Director, attend the next pre-agenda work session on 

January 12, 2022, to discuss with the Commission the possibility of creating a policy requiring 

developers to meet with stakeholders regarding their upcoming projects. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (1:08:42)  

 

The meeting adjourned at 10:07 AM. 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: January 18, 2021 

 

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube. 



 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 4, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 6:00 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0:55) Present were Mayor Betty Resch; Vice Mayor Herman Robinson and 

Commissioners Sarah Malega, Christopher McVoy (via Zoom) and Kimberly Stokes.  Also 

present were City Manager Carmen Davis, City Attorney Christy L. Goddeau and City Clerk 

Melissa Ann Coyne. 

 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: (1:39) led by Commissioner Christopher 

McVoy. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (1:20) led by Commissioner Kimberly Stokes. 

 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS/REORDERING (3:45) 

 

Consent item B, Third Amendment to Economic Development Incentive Agreement with The 

Mid, was moved to New Business E. 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve 

the agenda as amended. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: (4:20) 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT 

AGENDA: (26:15) 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: (32:40) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

following minutes: 

 

A. Regular Meeting – November 16, 2021 

 
B. Regular Meeting – December 7, 2021 

 
C. Regular Meeting – December 14, 2021 

 



Pg. 2, Regular Meeting, January 4, 2022 

 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: (32:49) (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-

Agendaed items) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

Consent Agenda: 

 

A. ESRI Geographic Information System (GIS) Enterprise Agreement Renewal 

B. (moved to New Business E) Third Amendment to Economic Development Incentive 

Agreement with The Mid  

C. Level 3 Communications, LLC Pole Attachment and Settlement Agreement  

D. Resolution No. 03-2022 Adopting the Palm Beach County Revised Local Mitigation 

Strategy Plan 

E. Authorize Second Amendment with Mock Roos & Associates, Inc. for Engineering Design 

and Construction Management Services for the City’s Neighborhood Street Program 

F. Authorize Subrecipient Agreement with State of Florida Department of Economic Opportunity 

(FDEO) for a grant for the Water Treatment Plant Roof Evaluation and Replacement Project 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: (33:03) 

 

A. Resolution No. 04-2022 - Approve a Historic Preservation Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for 

the property located at 1020 South Lakeside Drive 

 

City Attorney Goddeau did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 04-2022 OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LAKE 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, GRANTING AN AD VALOREM TAX EXEMPTION 

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1020 SOUTH LAKESIDE DRIVE, LAKE 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AS A RESULT OF THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION/ 

REHABILITATION OF THE PROPERTY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 

FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve 

Resolution No. 04-2022 – granting an Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for the property located at 

1020 South Lakeside Drive, Lake Worth Beach, Florida. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioner Malega.  

NAYS: Commissioners McVoy and Stokes. 

 

  



Pg. 3, Regular Meeting, January 4, 2022 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS: (47:29) 

 

A. Resolution No. 01-2022 updating the City of Lake Worth Beach’s travel policy (47:31) 

 

City Attorney Goddeau did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 01-2022 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

ADOPTING A PER DIEM AND TRAVEL EXPENSE POLICY PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 166.021(9), FLORIDA STATUTES; ADOPTING A PROCEDURAL GUIDE 

TO IMPLEMENT THE PER DIEM AND TRAVEL EXPENSE POLICY; 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO AMEND THE PROCEDURAL GUIDE AS 

NEEDED; AND PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to table 

Resolution No. 01-2022 – updating the City of Lake Worth Beach’s travel policy until the 

January 18, 2022 meeting. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS: None. 

 

B. Resolution No. 02-2022 – Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Application for South Palm 

Park Resiliency Project (1:12:19) 

 

City Attorney Goddeau did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 02-2022 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

TO AUTHORIZE THE SUBMISSION OF A PROPOSAL TO THE STATE OF 

FLORIDA DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT FOR $450,000 IN 

FUNDING UNDER THE HAZARD MITIGATION GRANT PROGRAM TO 

IMPLEMENT FLOOD MITIGATION MEASURES IN THE SOUTH PALM PARK 

NEIGHBORHOOD OF THE CITY; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Vice Mayor Robinson to 

approve/disapprove Resolution No. 02-2022 – Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Application 

for South Palm Park Resiliency Project.  

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS: None. 

 

C. Agreement with Siemens Energy, Inc. for the purchase of 145kV high voltage breakers 

(1:20:33) 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to 

approve/disapprove the agreement with Siemens Energy, Inc. for the purchase of 145kV high 

voltage breakers. 

 



Pg. 4, Regular Meeting, January 4, 2022 

 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS: None. 

 

D. Agreement with Southern States LLC, for the purchase of 138kV switches (1:25:01) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to 

approve/disapprove the agreement with Agreement with Southern States LLC, for the purchase 

of 138kV switches. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS: None. 

 

E. (moved from Consent B) Third Amendment to Economic Development Incentive 

Agreement with The Mid (1:28:41) 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Malega to 

approve/disapprove the agreement with Third Amendment to Economic Development 

Incentive Agreement with The Mid. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS: None. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT:  
 

City Attorney Goddeau did not provide a report. 

 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: (1:41:50) 

 

City Manager Davis provided the following report: 

 

 Wished everyone a Happy New Year 

 Announced that there was continuity of service during the current COVID outbreak; some 

staff were working from home and expressed gratitude for the dedicated employees who 

were working even while sick 

 Said that the City Hall Annex, City Hall and 1900 buildings were open, but people may 

need to be buzzed in to limit capacity due to the outbreak 

 Urged everyone to adhere to CDC guidelines and protocols 

 Highlighted that work sessions would be scheduled regarding ARPA funds, visioning tying 

into the budget in March or April and the budget schedule was being worked on 

 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 

January 12 - pre-agenda work session @ 9 AM 

January 18 - regular  

January 25 - electric  

January 26 - pre-agenda work session @ 9 AM  

January 26 - work session (beach complex) @ 4 PM  

A. Draft Agenda – January 18, 2022 



Pg. 5, Regular Meeting, January 4, 2022 

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (2:01:44) 

 

Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to adjourn the 

meeting at 8:01 PM. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes approved January 18, 2022.  

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube. 

 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: January 18, 2022 DEPARTMENT: City Commission 

TITLE: 

Confirmation of Chair and Vice Chair to the CRA Board 

 
SUMMARY: 

Joan Oliva, CRA Director, is requesting that the City Commission accept Brendan Lynch as CRA 
Board Chair and Brent Whitfield as CRA Board Vice-Chair.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

According to the CRA by-laws, the Chair shall be nominated by a majority vote of the members, 
and a recommendation for appointment shall be sent to the Lake Worth Beach City Commission.  
The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the CRA and shall execute instruments in the name 
of the CRA as may be required, appoint such committees from time to time as may be deemed 
appropriate, and shall have general supervision, direction and control over the business and 
operations of the CRA. 

At the October 21, 2021 meeting, the CRA Board nominated Brendan Lynch to serve as the 
Chair and Brent Whitfield to serve as the Vice Chair. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the nominations of Brendan Lynch to serve as the Chair and Brent 
Whitfield to serve as the Vice Chair of the CRA Board.   

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
CRA Memo 



  
 
 
                           FAX:                  (561) 586-1750 

 
 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Honorable Mayor, Vice Mayor and City Commissioners  
 
CC:  Juan Ruiz, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Joan C. Oliva, Executive Director 
 
DATE:  November 23, 2021 
 
SUBJECT:   Acceptance of Brendan Lynch as CRA Board Chair and Brent Whitfield 

 as CRA Board Vice-Chair 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The current CRA By-Laws, Article 2, Officers and Employees, reads as follows: 
 
2.1 Officers and Terms.  The officers of the CRA shall be a Chair and a Vice-Chair, of which the 
term of office shall be two (2) years.  If a vacancy occurs, the individual fulfilling the prior Chair’s 
term shall serve for the remainder of the prior member’s term until August 1st of the current year. 
Nominations shall be held on or before August 1 unless otherwise approved by the CRA. 
 
2.2 Chair.  The Chair shall be nominated by a majority vote of the members, and a 
recommendation for appointment shall be sent to the Lake Worth City Commission.  The Chair 
shall preside at all meetings of the CRA and shall execute instruments in the name of the CRA as 
may be required, appoint such committees from time to time as may be deemed appropriate, and 
shall have general supervision, direction and control over the business and operations of the CRA. 
 
At the October 21, 2021 meeting the Board nominated Brendan Lynch to serve as the Chair and 
Brent Whitfield to serve as the Vice Chair.  
 
REQUEST: 
We respectfully ask that the City Commission confirm these two nominations.  
 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: January 18, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Leisure Services 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 05-2022 –  approving and authorizing the Mayor to execute the FY22 DLIS ARPA 
Florida grant award 21-ARPA-16 for implementation of the Connecting Our Community program 

 
SUMMARY: 

The resolution approves and authorizes the Mayor to execute the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
Division of Library and Information Services (DLIS) Florida American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 
grant agreement 21-ARPA-16 in the amount of $30,050.  This grant funding is for the purpose 
of implementing the Connecting Our Community program. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Resolution No. 05-2022 approves and authorizes the Mayor to execute the Fiscal Year 2021-
2022 DLIS ARPA Florida grant agreement 21-ARPA-16 that has been funded in the amount of 
$30,050 for the implementation of the Connecting Our Community program.  There is no local 
cost share required from the City for this award; however, the City did provide salaries as a cash 
match for a portion of the Grant funds. 

The DLIS ARPA Grant Program supports local public libraries in helping communities respond 
directly to the pandemic, as well as to related economic and community needs through equitable 
approaches in digital inclusion and library services.  The Connecting Our City program will be 
implemented by the municipal library staff to purchase hot spots, laptops, tablets and other 
digital devices for circulation in the community. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 05-2022 approving and authorizing the Mayor to 
execute the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 DLIS ARPA Florida grant award 21-APRA-16 funded at 
$30,050 for implementation of the Connecting Our Community program. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Resolution 05-2022 
Grant Agreement 21-ARPA-16 
 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 30,050 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 30,050 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account Description Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

180-0000-
334-70-00 

Library Grants TBD    30,050  

180-9720-
572.52-00 

Parks and 
Recreation/Operating 
supplies 

TBD    30,050  

 



05-2022 1 
 2 
 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 05-2022 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 4 
FLORIDA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE 5 
THE FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 DIVISION OF LIBRARY AND 6 
INFORMATION SERVICES FLORIDA AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT 7 
GRANT AGREEMENT 21-ARPA-16 IN THE AMOUNT OF $30,050, 8 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 9 
 10 
 WHEREAS, the Florida Department of State (“Department”) has received funding 11 
from the Institute of Museum and Library Services under the provisions of the American 12 

Rescue Plan Act (“ARPA”); and 13 
 14 
 WHEREAS, the Department has made this funding available through its Division 15 

of Library and Information Services (“DLIS”) for the solicitation of programs that support 16 

public libraries to assist communities respond directly to the pandemic, as well as to 17 
related economic and community needs through equitable approaches digital inclusion 18 
and library services; and 19 

 20 
 WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 DLIS ARPA grant program supports 21 

projects that continue, enhance or expand existing programs and services, as well as 22 
new programs to address emergent needs and unexpected hardships; and 23 
 24 

 WHEREAS, the City has been awarded $30,050 in Fiscal Year 2021-2022 DLIS 25 
ARPA funding for the implementation of the Connecting Our Community program for the 26 

purchase of hot spots, laptops, tablets and other digital devices to circulate in the 27 
community; and 28 

 29 
 WHEREAS, no local cost share is required of the City; and 30 
 31 

 WHEREAS, the terms and conditions for the use of the grant award are set forth 32 
in the grant agreement 21-ARPA-16; and 33 

 34 
 WHEREAS, these grant funds serve a valid public purpose. 35 
 36 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF LAKE 37 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 38 
 39 
SECTION 1: The City Commission of the City of Lake worth Beach, Florida hereby 40 

approves and authorizes the Mayor to execute the grant agreement 21-ARPA-16 for grant 41 
funding in the amount of $30,050 to implement the Connecting Our Community program.  42 
 43 
SECTION 2:  Upon execution of the resolution, one copy shall be forwarded to the 44 
Leisure Services Department Director.  The fully executed original shall be maintained by 45 
the City Clerk as a public record of the City.  46 



Pg. 2, Reso. 05-2022 

SECTION 3: This resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 47 

 48 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner ______________, 49 

seconded by Commissioner ______________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote 50 

was as follows: 51 

Mayor Betty Resch  52 
Vice Mayor Herman Robinson  53 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  54 

Commissioner Christopher McVoy  55 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  56 

 57 

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 58 

_____ day of ____________, 2022.  59 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 60 
 61 

 62 
By: __________________________ 63 

Betty Resch, Mayor 64 

 65 
ATTEST: 66 

 67 

 68 

______________________________ 69 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 70 



a)

b)

PROJECT NUMBER 21-ARPA-16

DLIS FLORIDA AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT GRANT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF STATE
AND

City of Lake Worth Beach for and on behalf of Lake Worth Beach Public Library

This Agreement is by and between the State of Florida, Department of State, Division of Library and Information
Services, hereinafter referred to as the “Division," and the City of Lake Worth Beach for and on behalf of Lake
Worth Beach Public Library hereinafter referred to as the "Subgrantee."

The Subgrantee has met all eligibility requirements and has been awarded a DLIS Florida American Rescue Plan Act
(ARPA) Grant (CFDA 45.310) by the Division: project number 21-ARPA-16 for the project “Connecting Our
Community” in the amount of $30,050. Federal funds are provided through the Library Services and Technology
Act under Florida’s long-range plan approved by the Institute of Museum and Library Services. State of Florida
authority for this grant has been appropriated in the FY 2021-2022 General Appropriations Act. The Division, as
administrator of federal funds in accordance with Section 257.12, Florida Statutes, has the authority to administer
this grant. By reference, the application and any approved revisions are hereby made a part of this agreement.

In consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. Grant Purpose. This grant shall be used exclusively for the “Connecting Our Community,” the public purpose
for which these funds were awarded:

The Subgrantee shall perform the following Scope of Work:

The Lake Worth Beach Public Library is seeking to Connect Our Community by increasing the
connectivity of our underserved population. The purpose of this project is to provide e-resources to the
most isolated segments of our community so that they will be able to benefit from Library services even
though they are unable to physically use the Library building.

This will be accomplished by purchasing e-books, mobile hot spots, Chromebook laptops, and tablets,
preparing them for public use, and having them available for check out. Information cards and media
posts will be produced to explain the service and collect data on the use of the devices in the
community.

All tasks associated with this project, will be performed by September 30, 2022.

The Subgrantee agrees to provide the following Deliverables related to the Scope of Work for
payments to be awarded.

Page: 1



c)

# Payment
Type Deliverable Description Documentation Payment

Amount

1 Fixed
Price

Lake Worth Beach Public Library
will have developed an assessment
tool to measure staff/user satisfaction
with the new equipment and service
(Questionnaire for Library
Workforce About a
Resource/Planning and Evaluation
Activities).

To document evidence of
completion of the deliverables Lake
Worth Beach Public Library will
provide examples of the evaluation
questions, including written details
of when and where the developed
assessment tool will be used.

$7,512

2 Fixed
Price

Lake Worth Beach Public Library
will have: 1. Developed a publicity /
marketing plan for the equipment and
service. 2. Developed project
information cards.

To document evidence of
completion of the deliverables Lake
Worth Beach Public Library will
provide: 1. Copy of the publicity /
marketing plan. 2. Digital sample of
the cards or documented content
for the cards.

$7,512

3 Fixed
Price

Lake Worth Beach Public Library
will have: 1. Purchased one hundred
(100) e-books. 2. Purchased ten (10)
laptops. 3. Purchased ten (10)
tablets.

To document evidence of
completion of the deliverables Lake
Worth Beach Public Library will
provide invoices for the specified
purchases.

$7,512

4 Fixed
Price

Lake Worth Beach Public Library
will have purchased thirty (30)
hotspots.

To document evidence of
completion of the deliverables Lake
Worth Beach Public Library will
provide invoices for the specified
purchases.

$6,010

5 Fixed
Price

Lake Worth Beach Public Library
will have purchased a cumulative
total of one hundred fifty (150) e-
books.

To document evidence of
completion of the deliverables Lake
Worth Beach Public Library will
provide invoices for the specified
purchase.

$1,504

Totals $30,050

The Subgrantee has provided an Estimated Project Budget (which is incorporated as part of this
Agreement and titled Attachment A). All expenditures for this agreement shall be in accordance with this

Page: 2



a)

b)

budget.

2. Length of Agreement.This Agreement shall begin on September 3, 2021 and shall end September 30, 2022
unless terminated in accordance with the provisions of Section 38 of this Agreement.

3. Expenditure of Grant and Matching Funds. The Subgrantee shall only obligate or expend grant or matching
funds during the length of the agreement. No costs incurred after the ending date of the Agreement or other
termination of the Agreement shall be allowed.

4. Contract Administration. The parties are legally bound by the requirements of this agreement. Each party's
contract manager, named below, will be responsible for monitoring its performance under this Agreement and
will be the official contact for each party. Any notice(s) or other communications in regard to this agreement
shall be directed to or delivered to the other party's contract manager by utilizing the information below. Any
change in the contact information below should be submitted in writing to the contract manager within 10 days
of the change.

For the Division of Library and Information Services:

David Beach, Library Program Specialist
Florida Department of State
R.A. Gray Building
Mail Station #9D
500 South Bronough Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250
Phone: 850.245.6630
Facsimile: 850.245.6643
Email: david.beach@dos.myflorida.com

For the Subgrantee:

Cindy Ansell, Librarian
Lake Worth Beach Public Library
15 North M Street Lake Worth Beach Florida 33460
Phone: 561.533.7354
Email: cansell@lakeworthbeachfl.gov

5. Grant Payments. All grant payments are requested by submitting a Payment Request. Payment Requests and
supporting documentation must be submitted on the DOS Grants System at dosgrants.com. The total grant
award shall not exceed $30,050 which shall be paid by the Division in consideration for the Subgrantee’s
minimum performance as set forth by the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The grant payment schedule
is outlined below:

All payments will be made in the amounts identified with the Deliverables in Section 1 of this Agreement.

All payments will be made in accordance with the completion of those Deliverables.

Page: 3

https://dosgrants.com/


6. Electronic Payments. The Subgrantee can choose to use electronic funds transfer (EFT) to receive grant
payments. All Subgrantees wishing to receive their award through EFT must submit a Vendor Direct Deposit
Authorization form (form number DFS-AI-26E rev 6/2014), incorporated by reference, to the Florida
Department of Financial Services. If EFT has already been set up for your organization, you do not need to
submit another authorization form unless you have changed bank accounts. To download this form
visit myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Forms/DFS-A1-26E.pdf. The form also includes tools and information
that allow you to check on payments.

7. Florida Substitute Form W-9. A completed Substitute Form W-9 is required from any entity that receives a
payment from the State of Florida that may be subject to 1099 reporting. The Department of Financial Services
(DFS) must have the correct Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) and other related information in order to
report accurate tax information to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). To register or access a Florida Substitute
Form W-9 visit flvendor.myfloridacfo.com. If the Subgrantee has not previously submitted a copy of the
Subgrantee’s Florida Substitute Form W-9, a copy must be submitted with the executed Agreement.

8. Changes to Project. Should the Subgrantee wish to make changes to the outcomes, Scope of Work,
equipment to be purchased, key personnel, expenditures or deliverables, the Subgrantee must request
permission to revise the project. This is done by submitting a Change Request. Changes within a budget
category that are more than ten percent (10%) of the award or that move funds from one budget category to
another require submission of a Change Request. Approval must be obtained from the Division before the
changes are implemented in the project. Approval will be granted for changes that are consistent with the intent
of the approved application or prior Change Requests. Changes to the project must be requested using the
Change Request in the DOS Grants System at dosgrants.com.

9. Amendment to Contract. Either party may request modification of the provisions of this Agreement by filing
a Change Request with the Division. The Change Request must be submitted using the DOS Grants System
at dosgrants.com. Changes that are agreed upon shall be valid only when amended in writing, signed by each of
the parties and attached to the original of this Agreement. If changes are implemented without the Division’s
written approval, the organization is subject to noncompliance, the grant award is subject to partial or complete
refund to the State of Florida and this agreement is subject to termination.

10. Financial Consequences. The Department shall apply the following financial consequences for failure to
perform the minimum level of services required by this Agreement in accordance with Sections 215.971 and
287.058, Florida Statutes:

Payments will be withheld if the Deliverables identified in Section 1 of this Agreement are not satisfactorily
completed.

11. Grant Reporting Requirements. The Subgrantee must submit a Mid-Year Report on or by January 31,
2022. The Mid-Year report must be submitted using the DOS Grants System at dosgrants.com. At the
completion of the project, the Subgrantee must submit a Final Report on or by November 1, 2022. The Final
Report must be submitted using the DOS Grants System at dosgrants.com.

12. Grant Completion Deadline. The grant completion deadline is September 30, 2022. The Grant Completion Deadline is the

Page: 4

https://myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Forms/DFS-A1-26E.pdf
https://flvendor.myfloridacfo.com/
https://dosgrants.com/
https://dosgrants.com/
https://dosgrants.com/
https://dosgrants.com/


a)

b)

c)

date by which all grant and matching funds have been expended in accordance with the work described in the Scope of Work as detailed
in the Estimated Project Budget.

13. Acknowledgement of Grant Funding. Both the Institute of Museum and Library Services (IMLS) and the
Division require public acknowledgement of DLIS Florida American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) grant funding
for activities and publications supported by grant funds. Any announcements, information, press releases,
publications, brochures, videos, webpages, programs, etc. created as part of an ARPA project must include an
acknowledgment that ARPA funds were used to create them.

Use the following text:

“This project was funded under the provisions of the DLIS Florida American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)
from the Institute of Museum and Library Services. Florida’s DLIS Florida ARPA program is administered
by the Department of State’s Division of Library and Information Services.”

Additionally, when the subgrantee issues statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid solicitations
and other documents describing the programs funded in whole or in part with federal money, all of the
following must be clearly stated:

1. Percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the program or project which will be financed with
federal government money.

2. Percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project or program financed with state government
money.

3. Percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project or program financed with local government
money.

4. Percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the program or project financed with other non-
governmental money.

14. Grant Expenditures. The Subgrantee agrees to expend all grant funds received under this agreement solely for
the purposes for which they were authorized and appropriated. Expenditures shall be in compliance with the
state and federal guidelines for allowable project costs. State guidelines for allowable costs are outlined in the
Department of Financial Services’ Reference Guide for State Expenditures (as of January 2020), incorporated
by reference, which are available online at
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/division/aa/manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf.
Federal guidelines for allowable costs can be found at gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/CFR-
2014-title2-vol1-part200-subpartE.pdf in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart E – Cost Principles (as of September 2019),
incorporated by reference.

In addition, the following are not allowed as grant expenditures:

Construction. Funds may not be used to build, remodel or expand library facilities. However, they may
be used to retrofit a building to accommodate technologies (e.g., wiring).

Audits. If the Subgrantee’s governing entity has received less than $750,000 in federal funds, ARPA
funds may not be used to cover audit costs.

Food. Although food may be served at a program being paid for with grant funds, the food may not be

Page: 5

https://www.myfloridacfo.com/division/aa/manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/CFR-2014-title2-vol1-part200-subpartE.pdf


d)

purchased with grant or matching funds.

Motor vehicles. Grant funds may not be used for the purchase or continuous lease of motor vehicles.

15. Travel Expenses. The Subgrantee must pay any travel expenses, from grant or local matching funds, in
accordance to the provisions of Section 112.061, Florida Statutes.

16. Equipment Purchased With Grant Funding. Before the Subgrantee can purchase any equipment with a
purchase price of more than $5,000 (per item), the Division must request approval from the Institute of
Museum and Library Services. The Subgrantee will be notified once the approval has been obtained.

17. Unobligated and Unearned Funds and Allowable Costs. In accordance with Section 215.971, Florida
Statutes, the Subgrantee shall refund to the State of Florida any balance of unobligated funds which has been
advanced or paid to the Subgrantee. In addition, funds paid in excess of the amount to which the Subgrantee is
entitled under the terms and conditions of the agreement must be refunded to the state agency. Further, the
Subgrantee may expend funds only for allowable costs resulting from obligations incurred during the specified
agreement period. Expenditures of state and federal financial assistance must be in compliance with the laws,
rules and regulations applicable to expenditures of funds. For state funds, guidelines for allowable costs are
outlined in the Department of Financial Services’ Reference Guide for State Expenditures (as of January 2020)
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/division/aa/manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf),
incorporated by reference. For federal funds, guidelines for allowable costs can be found
gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/CFR-2014-title2-vol1-part200-subpartE.pdf in 2 CFR Part 200,
Subpart E – Cost Principles (as of September 2019), incorporated by reference.

18. Repayment. All refunds or repayments to be made to the Department under this agreement are to be made
payable to the order of “Department of State” and mailed directly to the following address: Florida Department
of State, Attention: David Beach, Library Program Specialist, Division of Library and Information Services, 500
South Bronough Street, Mail Station #9D, Tallahassee, FL 32399. In accordance with Section 215.34(2),
Florida Statutes, if a check or other draft is returned to the Department for collection, Subgrantee shall pay to
the Department a service fee of $15.00 or five percent (5%) of the face amount of the returned check or draft,
whichever is greater.

19. Single Audit Act. Each Subgrantee, other than a Subgrantee that is a state agency, shall submit to an audit
pursuant to the federal Single Audit Act, 2 Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Subpart F – Audit
Requirements (gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/CFR-2014-title2-vol1-part200.pdf  (as of
September 2019)), incorporated by reference. See Attachment B for additional information regarding this
requirement. If a Subgrantee is not required by law to conduct an audit in accordance with the Florida Single
Audit Act because it did not expend at least $750,000 in state financial assistance, it must submit a Financial
Report on its operations pursuant to Section 218.39, Florida Statutes within nine months of the close of its
fiscal year.

20. Retention of Accounting Records. Financial records, supporting documents, statistical records and all other
records, including electronic storage media pertinent to the Project, shall be retained through June 30, 2029. If
any litigation or audit is initiated or claim made, the records shall be retained until June 30, 2029 or five fiscal
years after the litigation, audit or claim has been completed and all issues arising from it have been resolved,

Page: 6

https://www.myfloridacfo.com/division/aa/manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/CFR-2014-title2-vol1-part200-subpartE.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/CFR-2014-title2-vol1-part200.pdf


a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

whichever is later.

21. Obligation to Provide State Access to Grant Records. The Subgrantee must make all grant records of
expenditures, copies of reports, books, and related documentation available to the Division or a duly authorized
representative of the State of Florida for inspection at reasonable times for the purpose of making audits,
examinations, excerpts and transcripts.

22. Obligation to Provide Public Access to Grant Records. The Division reserves the right to unilaterally
cancel this Agreement in the event that the Subgrantee refuses public access to all documents or other materials
made or received by the Subgrantee that are subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, known
as the Florida Public Records Act. The Subgrantee must immediately contact the Division's Contract Manager
for assistance if it receives a public records request related to this Agreement.

23. Noncompliance. Any Subgrantee that is not following Florida statutes or rules, the terms of the grant
agreement, Florida Department of State (DOS) policies and guidance, local policies or other applicable law, or
that has not submitted required reports or satisfied other administrative requirements for other Division of
Library and Information Services grants or grants from any other DOS Division will be in noncompliance status
and subject to the DOS Grants Compliance Procedure. DOS Divisions include the Division of Arts and
Culture, the Division of Historical Resources, the Division of Elections and the Division of Library and
Information Services. Grant compliance issues must be resolved before a grant award agreement may be
executed and before grant payments for any DOS grant may be released.

24. Accounting Requirements. The Subgrantee must maintain an accounting system that provides a complete
record of the use of all project funds as follows:

The accounting system must be able to specifically identify and provide audit trails that trace the receipt,
maintenance and expenditure of project funds.

Accounting records must adequately identify the sources and application of funds for all grant activities
and must classify and identify grant funds by using the same budget categories that were approved in the
grant application. If Subgrantee’s accounting system accumulates data in a different format than the one
in the grant application, subsidiary records must document and reconcile the amounts shown in the
Subgrantee’s accounting records to those amounts reported to the Division.

An interest-bearing checking account or accounts in a state or federally chartered institution may be used
for revenues and expenses described in the Scope of Work and detailed in the Estimated Project Budget.

The name of the account(s) must include the grant award number.

The Subgrantee's accounting records must have effective control over and accountability for all funds,
property and other assets.

Accounting records must be supported by source documentation and be in sufficient detail to allow for a
proper pre-audit and post-audit (such as invoices, bills and canceled checks).

25. Availability of Grant Funds. The State of Florida’s performance and obligation to pay grant funds under any

Page: 7



a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

a)

Agreement are contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Florida Legislature and upon an annual
appropriation of the U.S. Congress. In the event that the state or federal funds upon which this Agreement is
dependent are withdrawn, this Agreement will be automatically terminated, and the Division shall have no further
liability to the Subgrantee beyond those amounts already expended prior to the termination date. Such
termination will not affect the responsibility of the Subgrantee under this Agreement as to those funds
previously distributed. In the event of a state revenue shortfall, the total grant may be reduced accordingly.

26. Excluded or Disqualified. The Subgrantee certifies that to the best of the Subgrantee’s knowledge and belief
the Subgrantee and its principals:

Are not presently excluded or disqualified (debarment, suspension and other responsibility matters).

Have not been convicted within the preceding three years of any of the offenses listed in 45 CFR
1185.800(a), (gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2005-title45-vol3/pdf/CFR-2005-title45-vol3-part1185-
subpartH.pdf (as of September 2019)) incorporated by reference, or had a civil judgment rendered
against them for one of those offenses within that time period.

Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (federal,
state or local) with commission of any of the offenses listed in 45 CFR 1185.800(a)
(gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2005-title45-vol3/pdf/CFR-2005-title45-vol3-part1185-subpartH.pdf (as of
September 2019)), incorporated by reference.

Have not had one or more public transactions (federal, state or local) terminated within the preceding
three years for cause or default.

Will comply with 45 CFR Part 1185 Subpart C (Responsibilities of Participants Regarding Transactions)
(gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2005-title45-vol3/pdf/CFR-2005-title45-vol3-part1185-subpartC.pdf (as of
September 2019)), incorporated by reference, and will require similar compliance with Subpart C by
persons at the next lower tier with whom the primary tier participant enters into covered transactions.

27. Drug-Free Workplace. The Subgrantee will provide or continue to provide a drug-free workplace by
complying with the requirements in 45 CFR, Subtitle A, Subchapter A, Part 76, Subpart F, Drug Free
Workplace Requirements (Grants) (gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-1999-title45-vol1/pdf/CFR-1999-title45-vol1-
part76-subpartF.pdf (as of September 2019)), incorporated by reference.

This includes making a good faith effort, on a continuing basis, to maintain a drug-free workplace; publishing a
drug-free workplace statement; establishing a drug-free awareness program for employees; taking actions
concerning employees who are convicted of violating drug statutes in the workplace; and identifying (either with
this application, upon award, or in documents kept on file in the Subgrantee’s office) all known workplaces
under the award.

28. Lobbying. The Subgrantee will not use any grant funds for lobbying the state legislature, the state judicial
branch or any state agency. The Subgrantee will not use any grant funds for lobbying an officer or employee of
any federal agency, Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with any of the following federal actions:

The awarding of any federal contract.
Page: 8

https://gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2005-title45-vol3/pdf/CFR-2005-title45-vol3-part1185-subpartH.pdf
https://gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2005-title45-vol3/pdf/CFR-2005-title45-vol3-part1185-subpartH.pdf
https://gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2005-title45-vol3/pdf/CFR-2005-title45-vol3-part1185-subpartC.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-1999-title45-vol1/pdf/CFR-1999-title45-vol1-part76-subpartF.pdf


b)

c)

d)

e)

a)

b)

c)

d)

The making of any federal grant.

The making of any federal loan.

The entering into of any cooperative agreement.

The extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan or
cooperative agreement.

29. Delinquent in Repayment of Federal Debt. The Subgrantee certifies that, to the best of the Subgrantee’s
knowledge and belief, the Subgrantee is not delinquent in the repayment of any federal debt.

30. Nondiscrimination. As required by the Civil Rights Act of 1964, (eeoc.gov/laws/statutes/titlevii.cfm (as of
September 2019)) incorporated by reference, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section701&num=0&edition=prelim (as
of June 2021)), incorporated by reference, the Education Amendments of 1972 (uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?
path=/prelim@title20/chapter38&edition=prelim (as of September 2019)), incorporated by reference, and the Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1975, as implemented by 45 CFR Part 1180.44
(uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter76&edition=prelim (as of September 2019)),
incorporated by reference, the Subgrantee certifies that the Subgrantee will comply with the following
nondiscrimination statutes and their implementing regulations:

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 USC § 2000d et seq.)
(https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title42-chapter21-
subchapter5&saved=|KHRpdGxlOjQyIHNlY3Rpb246MjAwMGQtNyBlZGl0aW9uOnByZWxpbSk=|||0|false|prelim&edition=prelim (as of
June 2021)) incorporated by reference, which provides that no person in the United States shall, on the
grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or
otherwise be subject to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial
assistance;

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 USC § 701 et seq.)
uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title29/chapter16/&edition=prelim (as of September 2019)),
incorporated by reference, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in federally-assisted
programs;

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 USC §§ 1681-83, 1685-86),
(uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title20/chapter38&edition=prelim (as of September 2019))
incorporated by reference, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in education programs and
activities receiving federal financial assistance; and

The Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1975, as amended (42 USC § 6101 et seq.),
(uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter76&edition=prelim (as of September 2019))
incorporated by reference, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in federally-assisted
programs.

The Subgrantee shall insert a list of similar provisions in all subcontracts for services required by this
agreement.

Page: 9

https://www.eeoc.gov/laws/statutes/titlevii.cfm
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section701&num=0&edition=prelim
http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title20/chapter38&edition=prelim
http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter76&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid%3AUSC-prelim-title42-chapter21-subchapter5&saved=%7CKHRpdGxlOjQyIHNlY3Rpb246MjAwMGQtNyBlZGl0aW9uOnByZWxpbSk%3D%7C%7C%7C0%7Cfalse%7Cprelim&edition=prelim
http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title29/chapter16/node332&edition=prelim
http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title20/chapter38&edition=prelim
http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter76&edition=prelim


a)

b)

a)

b)

c)

31. Copyright and License. When publications, films or similar materials are developed, directly or indirectly,
from a program, project or activity supported with grant funds, Subgrantee (and any of its subcontractors, if
applicable) shall grant the Department of State an irrevocable, royalty-free, non-transferable, non-exclusive right
and license to reproduce or otherwise use, to make derivative works from, and to display and distribute any
copyrighted material developed under this Agreement for any state governmental purpose. The Subgrantee also
grants the federal awarding agency a royalty-free, nonexclusive and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or
otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for federal government purposes:

The copyright in any work developed under a grant, subgrant or contract under a grant or subgrant.

Any rights of copyright to which the grantee, subgrantee or a contractor purchases ownership with grant
support.

The Subgrantee shall include the foregoing paragraph in all of its subcontracts.

32. Independent Contractor Status of Subgrantee. The Subgrantee, if not a state agency, agrees that its
officers, agents and employees, in performance of this Agreement, shall act in the capacity of independent
contractors and not as officers, agents or employees of the state. The Subgrantee is not entitled to accrue any
benefits of state employment, including retirement benefits and any other rights or privileges connected with
employment by the State of Florida.  

33. Subgrantee's Subcontractors. The Subgrantee shall be responsible for all work performed and all expenses
incurred in connection with this Agreement. The Subgrantee may subcontract, as necessary, to perform the
services and to provide commodities required by this Agreement. The Division shall not be liable to any
subcontractor(s) for any expenses or liabilities incurred under the Subgrantee’s subcontract(s), and the
Subgrantee shall be solely liable to its subcontractor(s) for all expenses and liabilities incurred under its
subcontract(s). The Subgrantee must take the necessary steps to ensure that each of its subcontractors will be
deemed to be independent contractors and will not be considered or permitted to be agents, servants, joint
venturers or partners of the Division.  

34. Liability. The Division will not assume any liability for the acts, omissions to act or negligence of the
Subgrantee, its agents, servants or employees; nor may the Subgrantee exclude liability for its own acts,
omissions to act or negligence to the Division.

The Subgrantee shall be responsible for claims of any nature, including but not limited to injury, death
and property damage arising out of activities related to this Agreement by the Subgrantee, its agents,
servants, employees and subcontractors. The Subgrantee shall indemnify and hold the Division harmless
from any and all claims of any nature and shall investigate all such claims at its own expense. If the
Subgrantee is governed by Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, it shall only be obligated in accordance
with this Section.

Neither the state nor any agency or subdivision of the state waives any defense of sovereign immunity or
increases the limits of its liability by entering into this Agreement.

The Division shall not be liable for attorney fees, interest, late charges or service fees, or cost of
collection related to this Agreement.

Page: 10



d) The Subgrantee shall be responsible for all work performed and all expenses incurred in connection with
the project. The Subgrantee may subcontract as necessary to perform the services set forth in this
Agreement, including entering into subcontracts with vendors for services and commodities, provided
that such subcontract has been approved in writing by the Department prior to its execution and
provided that it is understood by the Subgrantee that the Department shall not be liable to the
subcontractor for any expenses or liabilities incurred under the subcontract and that the Subgrantee shall
be solely liable to the subcontractor for all expenses and liabilities incurred under the subcontract.

35. Strict Compliance with Laws. The Subgrantee shall perform all acts required by this Agreement in strict
conformity with all applicable laws and regulations of the local, state and federal law. For consequences of
noncompliance, see Section 24, Noncompliance.

36. Breach of Agreement. The Division will demand the return of grant funds already received, will withhold
subsequent payments and/or will terminate this agreement if the Subgrantee improperly expends and manages
grant funds; fails to prepare, preserve or surrender records required by this Agreement; or otherwise violates
this Agreement.

37. Termination of Agreement. The Division will terminate or end this Agreement if the Subgrantee fails to fulfill
its obligations herein. In such event, the Division will provide the Subgrantee a notice of its violation by letter
and shall give the Subgrantee fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of receipt to cure its violation. If the
violation is not cured within the stated period, the Division will terminate this Agreement. The notice of violation
letter shall be delivered to the Subgrantee's Contract Manager, personally, or mailed to his/her specified address
by a method that provides proof of receipt. In the event that the Division terminates this Agreement, the
Subgrantee will be compensated for any work completed in accordance with this Agreement prior to the
notification of termination if the Division deems this reasonable under the circumstances. Grant funds
previously advanced and not expended on work completed in accordance with this Agreement shall be returned
to the Division, with interest, within thirty (30) days after termination of this Agreement. The Division does not
waive any of its rights to additional damages if grant funds are returned under this Section.

38. Preservation of Remedies. No delay or omission to exercise any right, power or remedy accruing to either
party upon breach or violation by either party under this Agreement shall impair any such right, power or
remedy of either party; nor shall such delay or omission be construed as a waiver of any such breach or default
or any similar breach or default.

39. Non-Assignment of Agreement. The Subgrantee may not assign, sublicense or otherwise transfer its rights,
duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Division, which shall not
unreasonably be withheld. The agreement transferee must demonstrate compliance with the requirements of the
project. If the Division approves a transfer of the Subgrantee’s obligations, the Subgrantee shall remain liable
for all work performed and all expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement. In the event the Legislature
transfers the rights, duties and obligations of the Division to another governmental entity, pursuant to Section
20.06, Florida Statutes or otherwise, the rights, duties and obligations under this Agreement shall be
transferred to the succeeding governmental agency as if it was the original party to this Agreement.

40. Required Procurement Procedures for Obtaining Goods and Services. The Subgrantee shall provide
maximum open competition when procuring goods and services related to the grant-assisted project in

Page: 11



a)

b)

accordance with Section 287.057, Florida Statutes.  

Procurement of Goods and Services Not Exceeding $35,000. The Subgrantee must use the
applicable procurement method described below:

1. Purchases Up to $2,500: Procurement of goods and services where individual purchases do not
exceed $2,500 do not require competition and may be conducted at the Subgrantee’s discretion.

2. Purchases or Contract Amounts Between $2,500 and $35,000: Goods and services costing
between $2,500 and $35,000 require informal competition and may be procured by purchase order,
acceptance of vendor proposals or other appropriate procurement document.

Procurement of Goods and Services Exceeding $35,000. Goods and services costing over $35,000
may be procured by either Formal Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals or Invitation to Negotiate and
may be procured by purchase order, acceptance of vendor proposals or other appropriate procurement
document.

41. Conflicts of Interest. The Subgrantee hereby certifies that it is cognizant of the prohibition of conflicts of
interest described in Sections 112.311 through 112.326, Florida Statutes and affirms that it will not enter into
or maintain a business or other relationship with any employee of the Department of State that would violate
those provisions. The Subgrantee further agrees to seek authorization from the General Counsel for the
Department of State prior to entering into any business or other relationship with a Department of State
Employee to avoid a potential violation of those statutes.

42. Binding of Successors. This Agreement shall bind the successors, assigns and legal representatives of the
Subgrantee and of any legal entity that succeeds to the obligations of the Division of Library and Information
Services.

43. Employment of Unauthorized Aliens. The employment of unauthorized aliens by the Subgrantee is
considered a violation of Section 274A (a) of the Immigration and Nationality Act (8 USC 1324(a)) (as of
September 2019), incorporated by reference. If the Subgrantee knowingly employs unauthorized aliens, such
violation shall be cause for unilateral cancellation of this Agreement.

44. Severability. If any term or provision of the Agreement is found to be illegal and unenforceable, the remainder
will remain in full force and effect, and such term or provision shall be deemed stricken.

45. Americans with Disabilities Act. All programs and facilities related to this Agreement must meet the
standards of Sections 553.501 through 553.513, Florida Statutes and the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990 (ada.gov (as of September 2019)), incorporated by reference.

46. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed, performed and enforced in all respects in accordance
with the laws and rules of Florida. Venue or location for any legal action arising under this Agreement will be in
Leon County, Florida.

47. Entire Agreement. The entire Agreement of the parties consists of the following documents:

Page: 12

https://www.ada.gov/


a)

b)

c)

This Agreement.

Estimated Project Budget (Attachment A).

Florida Single Audit Act Requirements (Attachment B).

Page: 13



In acknowledgment of Project Number 21-ARPA-16, provided for from funds appropriated in the FY 2021-
2022 General Appropriation Act in the amount of $30,050, the Subgrantee hereby certifies that they have
read this entire Agreement and will comply with all of its requirements.  

 

Subgrantee: Department of State

By: _________________________________

     Authorized Official for the Subgrantee

 

By: _________________________________

_____________________________________ 

Typed name and title

Amy L. Johnson, Director
Division of Library and Information Services
Department of State, State of Florida
_____________________________________ 

_____________________________________

Date

_____________________________________

Date

_____________________________________

Witness

_____________________________________

Witness

_____________________________________

Date

_____________________________________

Date

Page: 14



Project Number: 21-ARPA-16
Connecting Our Community

ATTACHMENT A
Estimated Project Budget

Description Grant Funds Cash Match In Kind Match

Salaries & Benefits

Library Manager $0 $9,569 $0

Librarian 1 $0 $4,681 $0

Library Associate 1 $0 $3,779 $0

Library Associate $0 $3,588 $0

Subtotals $0 $21,617 $0

Library Materials

200 Ebooks $10,000 $0 $0

Subtotals $10,000 $0 $0

Other

30 Net10 Mobile Hotspots with 30 day data plans $12,300 $0 $0

10 HP 14" Touch Screen Laptops Intel Core i3 8GB
Memory 256GB SSD $5,000 $0 $0

10 Samsung Galaxy Tab A 8 inch 64GB WiFi Tablet $2,000 $0 $0

50 padded bags with imprint $500 $0 $0

200 project information cards $250 $0 $0

Subtotals $20,050 $0 $0

Totals $30,050 $21,617 $0

Page: 15



ATTACHMENT B
FLORIDA SINGLE AUDIT ACT REQUIREMENTS

AUDIT REQUIREMENTS
The administration of resources awarded by the Department of State to the Subgrantee may be subject to audits
and/or monitoring by the Department of State as described in this Addendum to the Grant Award Agreement.

Monitoring
In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements, and
section 215.97, Florida Statutes (F.S.), as revised (see Audits below),  monitoring procedures may include, but not
be limited to, on-site visits by Department of State staff, limited scope audits as defined by 2 CFR 2 §200.425, or
other procedures. By entering into this agreement, the recipient agrees to comply and cooperate with any monitoring
procedures/processes deemed appropriate by the Department of State. In the event the Department of State
determines that a limited scope audit of the recipient is appropriate, the recipient agrees to comply with any additional
instructions provided by the Department of State staff to the recipient regarding such audit. The recipient further
agrees to comply and cooperate with any inspections, reviews, investigations or audits deemed necessary by the
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) or Auditor General.

Audits

Part I: Federally Funded

This part is applicable if the recipient is a state or local government or a nonprofit organization as defined in 2 CFR
§200.90, §200.64, and §200.70.

1. A recipient that expends $750,000 or more in federal awards in its fiscal year must have a single or program-
specific audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements.
Exhibit 1 to this agreement lists the federal resources awarded through the Department of State by this
agreement. In determining the federal awards expended in its fiscal year, the recipient shall consider all sources
of federal awards, including federal resources received from the Department of State. The determination of
amounts of federal awards expended should be in accordance with the guidelines established by 2 CFR
200.502-503. An audit of the recipient conducted by the Auditor General in accordance with the provisions of 2
CFR 200.514, will meet the requirement of this Part.

2. For the audit requirements addressed in Part I, paragraph 1, the recipient shall fulfill the requirements relative to
auditee responsibilities as provided in 2 CFR 200.508-512. 

3. A recipient that expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its fiscal year is not required to have an audit
conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, subpart F - Audit Requirements. If the recipient
expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted in
accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, subpart F - Audit Requirements, the cost of the audit must be
paid from non-federal resources (i.e. the cost of such an audit must be paid from recipient resources obtained

Page: 16



from other than federal entities).

Part II: State Funded

This part is applicable if the recipient is a nonstate entity as defined by section 215.97(2),F.S.

1. In the event that the recipient expends a total amount of state financial assistance equal to or in excess of
$750,000 in any fiscal year of such recipient (for fiscal years ending June 30, 2017 and thereafter), the recipient
must have a state single or project-specific audit for such fiscal year in accordance with Section 215.97, F.S.;
Rule Chapter 69I-5 F.A.C., State Financial Assistance; and Chapters Chapters 10.550 (local governmental
entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General. EXHIBIT 1 to this
agreement indicates state financial assistance awarded through the Department of State by this agreement. In
determining the state financial assistance expended in its fiscal year, the recipient shall consider all sources of
state financial assistance, including state financial assistance received from the Department of State, other state
agencies, and other nonstate entities. State financial assistance does not include federal direct or pass-through
awards and resources received by a nonstate entity for federal program matching requirements.

2. For the audit requirements addressed in Part II, paragraph 1, the recipient shall ensure that the audit complies
with the requirements of Section 215.97(8), F.S. This includes submission of a financial reporting package as
defined by Section 215.97(2) F.S., and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and
for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General.

3. If the recipient expends less than $750,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal year (for fiscal years ending
June 30, 2017 and thereafter), an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 215.97, F.S., is
not required. In the event that the recipient expends less than $750,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal
year and elects to have an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 215.97, F.S., the cost
of the audit must be paid from the nonstate entity’s resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be paid from
the recipient’s resources obtained from other than State entities).

The Internet web addresses listed below will assist recipients in locating documents referenced in the text of this
agreement and the interpretation of compliance issues.

State of Florida Department Financial Services (Chief Financial Officer)
http://www.myfloridacfo.com/

State of Florida Legislature (Statutes, Legislation relating to the Florida Single Audit Act)
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/

 

Part III:  Report Submission

1. Copies of reporting packages for audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit
Requirements, and required by PART I of this agreement shall be submitted, when required by 2 CFR 200.512,
by or on behalf of the recipient directly to each of the following: 

A. The Department of State via the DOS Grants System at https://dosgrants.com
 

Page: 17

http://http//www.myfloridacfo.com/ 
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/
https://dosgrants.com


B. The Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) as provided in 2 CFR 200.6 and section 200.512

The FAC's website prides a data entry system and required forms for submitting the single audit reporting
package. Updates to the location of the FAC and data entry system may be found at the OMB website.

2. Copies of financial reporting packages required by PART II of this agreement shall be submitted by or on behalf
of the recipient directly to each of the following: 

A. The Department of State via the DOS Grants System at https://dosgrants.com
 

B. The Auditor General’s Office at the following address:

Auditor General
Local Government Audits/342
Claude Pepper Building, Room 401
111 West Madison Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450

 
1. Any reports, management letter, or other information required to be submitted to the Department of State

pursuant to this agreement shall be submitted timely in accordance with 2 CFR 200.512, section 215.97 F.S. and
Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the
Auditor General, as applicable. 

2. Recipients, when submitting financial reporting packages to the Department of State for audits done in
accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements or Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities)
and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, should indicate the date that
the reporting package was delivered to the recipient in correspondence accompanying the reporting package.

Part IV:  Record Retention

1. The recipient shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the terms of the award(s) and this
agreement through June 30, 2029, and shall allow the Department of State, or its designee, the CFO, or Auditor
General access to such records upon request. The recipient shall ensure that audit working papers are made
available to the Department of State, or its designee, the CFO, or Auditor General upon request for a period of
at least three years from the date the audit report is issued, unless extended in writing by the Department of
State.

Page: 18

https://dosgrants.com


EXHIBIT – 1

FEDERAL RESOURCES AWARDED TO THE RECIPIENT 
PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:

Florida Department of State, Florida American Rescue Plan Act Grant
CFDA Number 45.310
Award amount: $30,050

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE FEDERAL RESOURCES 
AWARDED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Code of Federal Regulations, Title 2 Grants and Agreements, Revised January 1, 2014
(2 CFR 2)

STATE RESOURCES AWARDED TO THE RECIPIENT 
PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:

MATCHING RESOURCES FOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS:

Not applicable

SUBJECT TO SECTION 215.97, FLORIDA STATUTES:

Not applicable

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO STATE RESOURCES AWARDED 
PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Not applicable

ARPA Grant Agreement (Form DLIS/ARPA01)
Chapter 1B-2.011(2)(d), Florida Administrative Code, effective 03-2020

Page: 19



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: January 18, 2022 DEPARTMENT: City Attorney 

TITLE: 

Resolution 06-2022 – Supporting and Adopting the Palm Beach County League of Cities’ 
Resolution regarding Lake Okeechobee System Operation Manual 

 
SUMMARY: 

Resolution No. 06-2022 provides the City’s support and adoption of the Palm Beach County 
League of Cities’ Resolution regarding the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers’ development of a new 
Lake Okeechobee Operational Schedule, Lake Okeechobee System Operation Manual. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

On October 27, 2021, the Palm Beach County League of Cities (PBC LOC) adopted Resolution 
No. 21-01 regarding the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers’ development of a new Lake 
Okeechobee Operational schedule, Lake Okeechobee System Operation Manual (LOSOM) (a 
copy of the PBC LOC resolution is attached). In its resolution, PBC LOC set forth measures it 
supports and measures it opposes for the LOSOM being developed by the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers. The City Commission previously provided direction to City staff to prepare a 
resolution to support and adopt the PBC LOC’s Resolution No. 21-01 as the City’s own 
resolution.  
 
If adopted, City Resolution No. 06-2022 will be provided to the PBC LOC and U.S. Army Corps 
of Engineers.  

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve / disapprove Resolution 06-2022 – Supporting and Adopting the Palm Beach 
County League of Cities’ Resolution regarding Lake Okeechobee System Operation Manual. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
City Resolution 06-2022 
PBC LOC Resolution No. 21-01 



06-2022 1 

 2 

 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 06-2022 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 4 

FLORIDA, SUPPORTING AND ADOPTING THE PALM BEACH COUNTY 5 

LEAGUE OF CITIES’ RESOLUTION ON THE U.S. ARMY CORPS OF 6 

ENGINEERS’ DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW LAKE OKEECHOBEE 7 

OPERATIONAL SCHEDULE, LAKE OKEECHOBEE SYSTEM OPERATION 8 

MANUAL (LOSOM); PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 9 

REPEAL OF CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 10 

 11 

 12 

WHEREAS, on October 27, 2021, the Palm Beach County League of Cities (PBC 13 

LOC) adopted Resolution No. 21-01 regarding the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers’ 14 

development of a new Lake Okeechobee Operational schedule, Lake Okeechobee 15 

System Operation Manual (LOSOM) (a copy of the PBC LOC resolution is attached 16 

hereto and incorporated herein); and, 17 

 18 

WHEREAS, in its resolution, PBC LOC set forth measures it supports and 19 

measures it opposes for the LOSOM being developed by the U.S. Army Corps of 20 

Engineers; and, 21 

 22 

WHEREAS, the City Commission has reviewed PBC LOC’s resolution and 23 

supports its findings and conclusions in Resolution No. 21-01; and, 24 

 25 

WHEREAS, the City Commission desires to adopt PBC LOC’s Resolution No. 21-26 

01 as a resolution of the City of Lake Worth Beach; and 27 

 28 

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds supporting and adopting PBC LOC’s 29 

Resolution No. 21-01 serves a valid public purpose. 30 

 31 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF LAKE 32 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 33 

 34 

Section 1. The above recitals are incorporated into this resolution as true and correct 35 

findings of the City Commission. 36 

 37 

Section 2.  The City of Lake Worth Beach fully supports and adopts PBC LOC’s 38 

attached Resolution No. 21-01 as the City’s own resolution and the City supports the PBC 39 

LOC in its findings and conclusions set forth therein. 40 

 41 

Section 3. The City Clerk is directed to provide a copy of this resolution to the PBC 42 

LOC and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.  43 

 44 

Section 4. All resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 45 

 46 



Pg. 2, Reso. 06-2022 

Section 5. This resolution shall become effective upon its adoption.  47 

 48 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner xxx seconded by xxx, 49 

and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 50 

 51 

Mayor Betty Resch   52 

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson 53 

Commissioner Sarah Malega 54 

Commissioner Christopher McVoy 55 

Commissioner Kim Stokes  56 

 57 

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on this 58 

18th day of January 2022. 59 

 60 

 61 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 62 

 63 

 64 

By: ___________________________ 65 

Betty Resch, Mayor 66 

 67 

ATTEST: 68 

 69 

 70 

__________________________  71 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 72 









EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: January 18, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Change Order #2 – final with Foster Marine Contractors, Inc. for District 3, Year 3 outfall project 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Change Order #2 – final with Foster Marine Contractors, Inc. provides for additional contract 
time due to changes identified in the field and provides for reduction in contract cost in 
connection to those changes. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City bid the Neighborhood Road District 3 Year 3 project in January 2019. The project scope 
was adjusted in Work Directive Change 1 (WDC-1) to reduce the scope of project by deleting 
and revising contract line items.  During construction, additional scope elements were identified 
and work was reduced further.  Major items that were identified and removed include a 20 linear 
foot section of retaining head wall that was planned to be demolished and replaced, but instead 
will remain.  Since the existing headwall was kept, the removal and replacement of 54-inch 
outfall was taken out of the contract.  The existing headwall was improved with a new headwall 
cap added to match the proposed design grades.   Additionally, the fabrication of an offset sleeve 
was needed to properly install the 54-inch tide check valve at 18th Ave N.  The above tasks 
required additional time due to design changes and the fabrication of the sleeve.  These changes 
added 45 days of contract time.  However, the overall contract cost and budget was reduced by 
$21,525.72. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Change Order #2 with Foster Marine Contractors, Inc for District 3 
Year 3 outfall project. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Change Order #2 final 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures ($21,525.72) 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

428-5090-
538.63-15 

Stormwater NR1903 $3,007,943.00 $2,294,681.32  ($21,525.72) $2,316,207.04 

 









































EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: January 18, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

TITLE: 

Work Order #8 with The Paving Lady for  paving work to be completed on 17th Ave N from N D 
St to the railroad tracks, 22nd Ave N and Park Street, and 21st Ave N from Park St to the dead 
end 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Work Order #8 to The Paving Lady authorizes the paving work to be completed on 17th Ave 
N from N D St to the railroad tracks, 22nd Ave N and Park Street, and 21st Ave N from Park St 
to the dead end.   

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City identified 17th Ave N from N D St to the railroad tracks, 22nd Ave N and Park Street, 
and 21st Ave N from Park St to the dead end as infrastructure in very poor condition requiring 
rehabilitation.  The City currently has a contract with the Paving Lady on an as needed basis.  
The scope of the work is inclusive of removing the existing sidewalk and curbing and replacing 
with new sidewalk and curbing, milling and paving and installing new lane striping.  The Work 
Order is not to exceed $179,703.54 and will be paid for from Roadway Improvement Funds.  

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Work Order #8 with The Paving Lady at a cost not to exceed 
$179,703.54. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Work Order #8 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 179,703.54 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 179,703.54 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

170-5020-
519-63-15 

Improve 
other than 
build 

GV2203 1,100,000 1,100,000 N/A 179,703.54 920,296.46 

        

 























EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

  

AGENDA DATE: January 16, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 07-2022 –  approve and authorize the submission of an application to EDA for 
grant funding under the ARPA Good Jobs Challenge 

 
SUMMARY: 

The resolution authorizes the submission of the City’s application to the Economic Development 
Administration for grant funding under the American Rescue Plan Act Good Jobs Challenge to 
implement an apprenticeship training program for prospective line workers for the City’s Electric 
Utility. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The Economic Development Administration (“EDA”) has announced the availability of funding 
under the American Rescue Plan Act (“ARPA”) Good Jobs Challenge.  This program is designed 
to get Americans back to work and increase wage growth.  It is further intended to develop 
demand-driven systems that will continue to support Americans in securing and retaining quality 
jobs.  A quality job is considered to be a job that exceeds the local prevailing wage for an industry 
in the region, includes basic benefits and/or is unionized, and helps the prospective employee 
develop the skills and experiences necessary to advance along a career path. 
 

Resolution No. 07-2022 approves and authorizes the submission of an application to the EDA 
for grant funding in the amount of 07X under the ARPA Good Jobs Challenge program to 
implement a successful workforce training program that responds to industry needs today and 
into the future.  Specifically, this funding will be used to conduct an apprenticeship training 
program for prospective line workers that will be registered by the Florida Department of 
Education Division of Career and Adult Education for Apprenticeship.  A minimum of four 
qualified apprentices will be engaged in learning this recognized skill trade through actual work 
experience under the supervision of journey workers, in combination with properly coordinated 
studies of related and supplementary subjects over a term of four years.  

Grant funding is essential to the implementation of the apprenticeship program as no funding is 
currently budgeted for this purpose.  The City is requesting $1,000,000 in grant funding and is 
proposing an in-kind local cost share of $250,000.  The only remaining option to funding this 
program in whole would be to raise rates for the provision of electricity to the Utility’s customers. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 07-2022 to approve and authorize the submission 
of an application to EDA for grant funding under the ARPA Good Jobs Challenge.  



 
FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

Funding of the local cost share in the amount of $250,000 will be in-kind labor costs over four 
years through the Electric utility Transmission and Distribution Division. 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 62,500 62,500 62,500 62,500 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 62,500 62,500 62,500 62,500 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 In -
Kind 
Salary 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

401-6034-
531-12-10 

Salaries & 
Wages/Regular 

TBD $62,500 $1,756,609 N/A -$62,500 $1,694,109 

        

 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Resolution 07-2022 
 
 



07-2022 1 
 2 
 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 07-2022 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 4 
FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF THE CITY’S 5 
APPLICATION TO THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION 6 
FOR GRANT FUNDING UNDER THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT 7 
GOOD JOBS CHALLENGE TO IMPLEMENT AN APPRENTICESHIP 8 

PROGRAM FOR PROSPECTIVE LINEMEN FOR THE CITY’S ELECTRIC 9 
UTILITY; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER 10 
PURPOSES 11 

 12 

 WHEREAS, the Economic Development Administration has announced the 13 
availability of funding under the American Rescue Plan Act Good Jobs Challenge (the 14 
“Program”); and 15 

 16 

 WHEREAS, the Program is designed to get Americans back to work and increase 17 
wage growth; and 18 
 19 

 WHEREAS, the City is an eligible applicant to seek funding for allowed projects 20 
under the Program; and 21 

 22 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to implement an apprenticeship training program for 23 
prospective linemen that will be properly registered by the Florida Department of 24 

Education Division of Career and Adult Education for Apprenticeship (the “Project”); and 25 
 26 

 WHEREAS, the City intends to request grant funding under the Program in the 27 
amount of $1,000,000 for the implementation of the Project; and 28 

 29 
 WHEREAS, the City will contribute an “in-kind” local cost share of $250,000 in 30 
support of the Project; and 31 

 32 
 WHEREAS, the Project will enroll a minimum of four (4) qualified apprentices to 33 

learn this recognized skill trade through actual work experience under the supervision of 34 
journey workers, in combination with properly coordinated studies of related and 35 
supplementary subjects; and 36 

 37 

WHEREAS, the Project represents an eligible use of grant funding under the 38 
Program; and,  39 

 40 

WHEREAS, the Project will serve a valid public purpose. 41 
 42 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF LAKE 43 
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 44 
 45 



Pg. 2, Reso. 07-2022 

SECTION 1: The City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, hereby 46 
authorizes the submission of an application to the Economic Development Administration 47 
requesting $1,000,000 in grant funding assistance under the American Rescue Plan Act 48 

Good Jobs Challenge to implement an apprenticeship training program for prospective 49 
linemen.  50 
 51 
SECTION 2: The City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, hereby 52 
authorizes Carmen Davis, City Manager, or her designee, to execute any programmatic 53 

documents related to the submission of the City’s application. 54 
 55 
SECTION 3: Upon execution of the resolution, one copy shall be forwarded to the 56 
Electric Utilities Director.  The fully executed original shall be maintained by the City Clerk 57 

as a public record of the City.  58 
 59 
SECTION 4: This resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 60 

 61 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner ______________, 62 

seconded by Commissioner ______________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote 63 

was as follows: 64 

Mayor Betty Resch  65 

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson  66 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  67 

Commissioner Christopher McVoy  68 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  69 

 70 

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 71 

_____ day of ____________, 2022.  72 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 73 
 74 

 75 
By: __________________________ 76 

Betty Resch, Mayor 77 
 78 

ATTEST: 79 
 80 
 81 
______________________________ 82 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 83 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE:  January 18, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  City Attorney 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 08-2022 – amending the City Commission’s Rules of Procedure 

 
SUMMARY: 

The City Commission requested to update its Rules of Procedure to change the “Electric Utility” 
meetings to the “Utility” meetings to include the City’s Water Utilities in said meetings. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
 

The City Commission’s Rules of Procedure were initially adopted in 2004 by resolution and have 
been amended multiple times by subsequent resolutions with the most recent amendment in 
May 2021. At a recent City Commission meeting, the City Commission requested to update its 
Rules of Procedure to change the “Electric Utility” meetings to the “Utility” meetings to include 
the City’s Water Utilities in the meetings. 
 
In reviewing the current Rules of Procedure, an update to the agenda submission deadline and 
agenda publishing dates is also needed based on current practice of publishing the agenda two 
(2) weeks prior to the Commission meeting date.  
 
Resolution No. 08-2022 implements the aforementioned amendments to the City Commission’s 
Rules of Procedure.  There are two others issues to consider which are highlighted on the 
resolution, Rule 5, numbers 3 and 6 regarding adding items to the agenda and Rule 12 regarding 
comment cards. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve / disapprove Resolution No. 08-2022 - amending the City Commission’s Rules 
of Procedure. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Resolution No. 08-2022 



08-2022 1 

 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 08-2022 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 3 

FLORIDA, AMENDING THE RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR LAKE 4 

WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION; REPEALING ALL RESOLUTIONS 5 

IN CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 6 

 7 

 8 

WHEREAS, in 2004, the City Commission adopted rules of procedure for City 9 

Commission meetings, which have been amended for a variety of reasons over time (see 10 

Resolutions 05-2004, 26-2006, 48-2007, 49-2007, 32-2008, 06-2009, 33-2009,04-2011, 11 

14-2011, 05-2012, 17-2012, 09-2013, 56-2013, 59-2015, 26-2017, 46-2018 and 25-12 

2021); and, 13 

 14 

WHEREAS, the City Commission desires to amend its rules of procedure to change the 15 

City’s Electric Utility meeting to the City’s Utility meeting for the inclusion of the City’s 16 

Water Utilities in those meetings; and  17 

 18 

WHEREAS, the City Commission also desires to update the date for agenda items to be 19 

submitted and the agenda publishing date to ensure greater public awareness and 20 

transparency of agenda items coming before the City Commission for consideration; and 21 

 22 

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds the revisions to the City Commission’s rules of 23 

procedure as set forth in this Resolution are necessary to maintain orderly conduct of all 24 

City Commission meetings and serve a valid public purpose. 25 

 26 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH 27 

BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 28 

 29 

Section 1.  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into this Resolution as true 30 

and correct statements. 31 

 32 

Section 2.  The City Commission’s adopted Rules of Procedure for the Lake Worth 33 

Beach City Commission are amended as follows (added language is underlined and 34 

deleted language is struck-through): 35 

 36 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 37 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 38 

 39 

RULE 1 40 

SCHEDULING OF MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS 41 

 42 

(1) Regular meetings of the City Commission shall be held on the first and third 43 

Tuesday of each month, in the Commission Chambers, at City Hall, 7 North 44 

Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida, and beginning at 6:00 P.M.  45 

 46 

If a regular meeting date falls on a holiday, the meeting shall be held in the 47 

Commission Chambers, at City Hall on the next day immediately following the 48 

holiday, beginning at 6:00 P.M.  49 



Pg. 2, Reso. 08-2022 

 
 50 

The City Commission may cancel not more than one regular meeting in any 51 

month. 52 

 53 

(2) Electric Utility meetings of the City Commission, which shall include matters 54 

regarding the City’s Electric Utility and Water Utilities, shall be held on the last 55 

Tuesday of each month, in the Commission Chambers, at City Hall, 7 North 56 

Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida beginning at 6:00 P.M. If an Electric 57 

Utility meeting date falls on a holiday or conflicts with the need for a Regular or 58 

special meeting of the City Commission, the Electric Utility meeting may be re-59 

scheduled to another date ideally during the last week of the month or the 60 

Electric Utility meeting may be cancelled. Electric Utility matters may be heard 61 

at regular and special meetings of the City Commission. Except as set forth 62 

herein, the Electric Utility meetings shall follow the same format, procedure and 63 

have the same rules of procedure as a regular meeting of the City Commission. 64 

 65 

(3) A special meeting of the City Commission to canvass ballots shall be held as 66 

required by the City Charter.  Other special meetings may be called by a majority 67 

of the members of the City Commission or by the Mayor. Notice of special 68 

meetings shall be given to each Commissioner1 and to the public at least twenty-69 

four (24) hours in advance except for emergency meetings. If the Mayor or a 70 

member of the Commission is absent from the City or otherwise beyond reach 71 

of actual notice, failure to give such notice shall not prevent the convening of 72 

the special meeting. The City Commission may act on any matter presented at 73 

the special meeting unless prohibited by the City Charter or by rules established 74 

by the City Commission. Special meetings shall be held in the Commission 75 

Chambers or Commission Meeting Room at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, 76 

Lake Worth Beach, Florida, or at such other location within the City as may be 77 

designated in the notice of the special meeting, beginning at a time to be 78 

specified in the notice of the special meeting. 79 

  80 

(4)  Work Sessions of the City Commission may be called by a majority of the 81 

members of the City Commission or by the Mayor, and any matter may be 82 

discussed or studied at a work session.  Any matter that appears likely to take 83 

more than thirty (30) minutes shall be discussed or studied at a work session 84 

prior to official action of the City Commission, unless this requirement is waived 85 

by a majority vote. No official action of the City Commission shall be taken at a 86 

work session.  All work sessions shall end at 10:00 P.M.  At 10:00 P.M., the City 87 

Commission shall cease further discussion on the business on the table and, 88 

upon a majority consensus of the City Commission present, determine whether 89 

to (1) adjourn the meeting; or (2) extend the meeting and continue to conduct 90 

the meeting until 11:00 PM.  Thereafter, the meeting shall end, unless extended 91 

one hour, upon a majority consensus of the City Commission present. All 92 

meetings shall adjourn automatically at 12:00 AM.  93 

 94 

(5) “District Public Forums” may be held by the City Commission on a quarterly 95 

basis beginning in October 2021, one to be held in each district of the City on 96 

a rotating basis. Notice of such meetings shall be posted no less than 14 days 97 

before each meeting. No official action shall be taken at these meetings. 98 



Pg. 3, Reso. 08-2022 

 
 99 

(6) All regular and special meetings shall end at 10:00 P.M. At 10:00 P.M. the City 100 

Commission shall cease further discussion on the business on the table and, upon 101 

a majority vote of the City Commission present, determine whether or not to (1) 102 

adjourn the meeting; or (2) extend the meeting and continue to conduct the 103 

meeting until 11:00 PM. Thereafter, the meeting shall end, unless extended one 104 

hour, upon a majority vote of the City Commission present. All meetings shall 105 

adjourn automatically at 12:00 AM. 106 

 107 

Rule 1 is exempt from the provisions of Rule 11 Amendment or Waiver of Rules and shall 108 

not be waived, except where such waiver is expressly permitted in paragraph (4) of Rule 109 

1 (regarding the 30 minute limitation on discussions), and shall only be amended by 110 

resolution. 111 

 112 

RULE 2 113 

QUORUM 114 

 115 

A majority of the City Commission shall constitute a quorum; a smaller number may 116 

adjourn a meeting or recess a meeting to a time certain. No ordinance, resolution, or 117 

motion shall be adopted except by the affirmative vote of at least three members of the 118 

City Commission. 119 

 120 

RULE 3 121 

ABSENT MEMBER PARTICIPATION BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE 122 

 123 

Up to two (2) members of the City Commission, who are physically absent due to 124 

extraordinary circumstances, may participate through electronic means in a City 125 

Commission work session or meeting and vote in a meeting if a quorum of the 126 

Commission is physically present at the meeting or work session location.  127 

 128 

RULE 4 129 

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE “CHAIR” 130 

 131 

(1) The Mayor shall be the presiding officer of the City Commission, and shall be 132 

referred to as the “Chair” when sitting in that capacity.  In case of the absence or 133 

the disability of the Mayor, the Vice Mayor shall assume the responsibilities of the 134 

 presiding officer, and if both are absent or disabled, the Vice Mayor Pro Tem shall 135 

 preside. 136 

 137 

(2) The Chair shall preserve order.  The Chair may call to order any member of the 138 

Commission and any member of the public who shall violate any of these rules or 139 

otherwise disrupt the orderly proceeding of the meeting.  The Chair shall decide 140 

all questions of order subject to a majority vote on an appeal of the decision. 141 

 142 

(3) The Chair shall recognize all Commissioners who seek the floor while entitled to 143 

do so. 144 

 145 

(4) The Chair shall not make or second a motion. 146 

 147 



Pg. 4, Reso. 08-2022 

 
RULE 5 148 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 149 

 150 

(1) The order of business for a regular meeting shall ordinarily be: 151 

 152 

1. Roll Call 153 

2. Invocation or Moment of Silence 154 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 155 

4. Agenda-Additions/Deletions/Reordering 156 

5. Presentations 157 

6.  Commission Liaison Reports and Comments 158 

7. Public Participation on Non-Agendaed Items and Consent Agenda 159 

8. Approval of Minutes 160 

9. Consent Agenda 161 

10. Public Hearings 162 

11. Unfinished Business 163 

12. New Business 164 

13. Lake Worth Beach Electric Utility 165 

143. City Attorney’s Report 166 

154. City Manager’s Report 167 

165.  Upcoming meetings and work sessions 168 

176. Adjournment  169 

 170 

(2) The order of business may be revised by a majority vote. 171 

 172 

(3) Matters may be placed on the agenda by any Commissioner, the City Manager, 173 

or the City Attorney. 174 

 175 

(4) Except for matters advertised for public hearing, any matter may be removed 176 

from an agenda by the person who placed it on the agenda or by a majority 177 

vote. 178 

 179 

(5) When a matter comes before the Commission that directly affects one election 180 

district, the Commissioner from that district shall have the privilege of both 181 

expressing his or her views and making a motion on that matter first. 182 

 183 

(6) Matters may be placed under Presentations by any Commissioner or the City 184 

Manager. 185 

 186 

(7) The Invocation or Moment of Silence shall be offered by the Mayor or a member 187 

of the Commission on a rotating basis. The Mayor or Commissioner whose turn 188 

it is to deliver the invocation or moment of silence may designate another 189 

individual to deliver the invocation on their behalf.  Any individual who delivers 190 

the invocation shall not denigrate nonbelievers or religious minorities, threaten 191 

damnation, or preach conversion.  Any individual who delivers the invocation is 192 

encouraged to be respectful in tone. 193 

 194 

 195 

  196 



Pg. 5, Reso. 08-2022 

 
RULE 6 197 

DEBATE OF MOTIONS; VOTING 198 

 199 

(1) When debating or discussing a motion, a Commissioner shall address the Chair 200 

and await recognition before speaking.  The Commissioner making a motion is 201 

entitled to the floor first for debate.  No Commissioner is entitled to the floor a 202 

second time on the same motion as long as any other Commissioner who has 203 

not spoken on the issue desires the floor. 204 

 205 

(2) Motions and amendments can be withdrawn or modified by the maker at any 206 

time prior to the Chair’s stating the question on the motion; after that time, the 207 

permission of the Commission majority must be obtained. The Chair cannot 208 

close debate as long as any member who has not exhausted his right to debate 209 

desires the floor. 210 

 211 

(3) Members of the public are permitted to participate upon opening of the floor for 212 

public comment by the Chair during Public Participation on Non-Agendaed 213 

Items and Consent Agenda (No. 6 above) and during each item of Public 214 

Hearing (No. 10 above), Unfinished Business (No. 11 above), and New 215 

Business (No. 12 above). Under the Lake Worth Beach Electric Utility portion 216 

of a regular Commission meeting (No. 13 above), the public are permitted to 217 

participate upon opening of the floor for public comment by the Chair during 218 

Consent Agenda and during each item of Unfinished Business and New 219 

Business. The time shall be limited to three (3) minutes per public participant 220 

for Public Participation on Non-Agendaed Items and Consent Agenda (No. 6 221 

above). The time shall be limited to two (2) minutes per public participant on all 222 

issues of Public Hearing (No. 10 above), Unfinished Business (No. 11 above), 223 

and New Business (No. 12 above). Under the Lake Worth Beach Electric Utility 224 

portion of a regular Commission meeting (No. 13 above), the time shall be 225 

limited to three (3) minutes for the Consent Agenda and two (2) minutes for 226 

Unfinished Business and New Business. During a public hearing, the 227 

presentations shall be limited to ten minutes each but the time may be extended 228 

to permit questioning.  229 

 230 

(4) A member of the audience who speaks to the City Commissioner may be 231 

questioned for additional information, but Commissioners shall not engage in 232 

debate with a member of the audience. Members of the audience may ask 233 

questions but may not compel a Commissioner, the City Manager, or the City 234 

Attorney to answer questions during a meeting. 235 

 236 

(5) The Chair shall restate all motions before the vote is taken. 237 

 238 

(6) A tie vote shall constitute a continuance of the item to the next regular meeting, 239 

but upon a tie vote on the same item at the next meeting, the item shall not be 240 

rescheduled except upon the request of the City Manager, the City Attorney, or 241 

a Commissioner. 242 

 243 



Pg. 6, Reso. 08-2022 

 
(7) The failure of a motion stated in the negative shall not be deemed an affirmative 244 

action.  For example, the failure of a motion to deny shall not constitute an 245 

approval. 246 

 247 

(8) During a presentation, the presenter shall have ten minutes to make his or her 248 

presentation but the time may be extended to permit questioning of the 249 

presenter. 250 

RULE 7 251 

NON-DEBATABLE MOTIONS 252 

 253 

The following motions are not debatable: 254 

 255 

To adjourn; 256 

To lay on the table; 257 

To take from the table; 258 

To divide a question; 259 

To close or re-open nominations; 260 

To take a recess; 261 

A point of information; 262 

An appeal of a decision of the Chair; 263 

The previous question. 264 

 265 

RULE 8 266 

RECONSIDERATION 267 

 268 

Any member of the Commission may move to reconsider any action of the 269 

Commission provided that new relevant information is presented to the Commission 270 

and the motion be made by the next regular Commission meeting.  No motion to 271 

reconsider shall be made more than once on any subject or matter. 272 

 273 

RULE 9 274 

COMMISSION MINUTES 275 

 276 

Copies of the minutes of the regular meetings shall be furnished, when possible, at 277 

least five days prior to the next regular meeting. Such minutes shall stand confirmed 278 

at the regular meeting of the Commission without the reading thereof in open meeting 279 

unless some inaccuracy or error is pointed out by some member of the Commission 280 

present, and in such event, an appropriate correction shall be made.  Upon request, 281 

the City Manager will cause the City Clerk to provide any Commissioner with access 282 

to Commission meeting recordings or transcribed excerpts of City Commission 283 

meetings. No member shall suggest to the City Clerk any revision in minutes of 284 

meetings before the same shall have been submitted to the full Commission for 285 

approval, unless specifically requested by the Clerk to make clarification. 286 

 287 

RULE 10 288 

ADOPTION OF ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER 289 

 290 

Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised, are adopted as the rules of procedure of the 291 

City Commission, but such Rules shall not take precedence over any provision of 292 



Pg. 7, Reso. 08-2022 

 
Florida law, the City Charter, an ordinance or resolution of the City, or these rules, 293 

which shall govern in the event of conflict.  A failure to comply with Robert’s Rules of 294 

Order or these rules shall not affect the validity of any action taken by the City 295 

Commission. 296 

 297 

RULE 11 298 

AMENDMENT OR WAIVER OF RULES 299 

 300 

These rules of procedure may be amended or waived by a majority vote, provided that 301 

no such amendment shall conflict with any applicable provision of Florida law, the City 302 

Charter, or an ordinance of the City. 303 

 304 

RULE 12 305 

AGENDA PROCEDURES 306 

 307 

(1) Agenda submittal deadline:  The deadline for submitting items for inclusion on 308 

an agenda shall be no later than 12:00 PM on Friday of the week , 11 days 309 

prior to the deadline for distributing a final agendaa regularly scheduled 310 

Commission meeting. 311 

 312 

(2) Agenda distribution deadline:  The deadline for distributing a final agenda with 313 

supporting documents shall be no later than Thursday, two (2)the weeks prior 314 

to a regularly scheduled City Commission meeting. 315 

 316 

For all special or workshop City Commission meetings, the agendas with 317 

supporting documents will be distributed consistent with the timeframe 318 

referenced above. 319 

 320 

(3) Amendment to agenda:  There shall be no additions to a distributed City 321 

Commission agenda unless the matter is deemed to be an emergency. 322 

 323 

In the case of an emergency, any person or City Commissioner requesting an 324 

addition to the distributed City Commission agenda must do so in writing, 325 

provide written justification for the emergency within the narrative of an agenda 326 

memorandum, and include supporting backup material to the City Manager no 327 

later than 5:00 PM the Friday before a regularly scheduled Commission 328 

meeting. 329 

 330 

The name of the person or City Commissioner requesting the addition shall be 331 

placed with the agenda item to be presented. The written justification and 332 

supporting backup material shall be submitted to the City Commission prior to 333 

a regularly scheduled Commission meeting. 334 

 335 

At the beginning of the City Commission meeting, the City Commission shall 336 

review the emergency and, in its discretion, will determine whether it will 337 

accept, review and take action on the addition requested. 338 

  339 



Pg. 8, Reso. 08-2022 

 
RULE 13 340 

PRESERVE ORDER 341 

 342 

Intentionally deleted and reserved for future consideration. 343 

  344 

RULE 14 345 

DECORUM FOR CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 346 

 347 

In support of and respect for an open, fair and informed decision-making process, the 348 

City Commission and Administration recognize that: 349 

 350 

(1) Civil, respectful and courteous discourse and behavior are conducive to the 351 

democratic and harmonious airing of concerns and decision making; and 352 

 353 

(2) Un-civil discourse and/or discourteous and inappropriate behavior have a 354 

negative impact on the character and productivity of the decision-making 355 

process. 356 

 357 

(a) In an effort to preserve the intent of open government and maintain a positive 358 

environment for citizen input and Commission decision-making, the following Rules of 359 

Decorum for Citizen Participation have been established. 360 

 361 

Compliance with these rules is expected and appreciated. The Rules of Decorum for 362 

Citizen Participation will be referenced in the agenda. A written list of the Rules of 363 

Decorum for Citizen Participation will also be printed and mounted upon the walls of 364 

the Commission Chamber and Conference Room and referenced on comment cards 365 

utilized in the Commission Chamber.  366 

 367 

(1) Speakers will conduct themselves in a civil and respectful manner at all times. 368 

 369 

(2) Speakers will address the Chair. 370 

 371 

(3) Questions to Commission members or City staff will be facilitated by the 372 

Chair. 373 

 374 

(4) Speakers will refrain from the use of obscene language, “fighting words” likely 375 

to incite violence from the individuals(s) to whom the words are addressed or 376 

other language that is disruptive to the orderly and fair progress of discussion 377 

at the meeting. 378 

 379 

(5) Speakers will refrain from making comments of a personal nature regarding 380 

others. 381 

 382 

(6) Name-calling and/or obscenity is forbidden. 383 

 384 

(7) Shouting, yelling or screaming is forbidden. 385 

 386 

(8) Commission Work Session or Public Hearing attendees (audience) will refrain 387 

from commenting, shouting, booing, clapping, stomping feet or other 388 



Pg. 9, Reso. 08-2022 

 
inappropriate and/or disruptive behavior.  Brief clapping is permissible at the 389 

end of a speaker’s comments. 390 

 391 

It is the intent of Commission to maintain order and enforce the Rules of Decorum 392 

for Citizen Participation for its meetings.  Disregard of these rules will be met with 393 

the following consequences: 394 

 395 

(1) The Chair will identify out loud the out-of-compliance behavior and request 396 

for the behavior to stop;  397 

 398 

(2) The Chair will ask the speaker to have a seat if he/she continues to disrupt 399 

the meeting;  400 

 401 

(3) If the speaker refuses to have a seat, the Chair will recess the meeting; and 402 

 403 

(4) Will instruct a law enforcement officer to instruct the speaker to stop the 404 

disruptive conduct and escort the speaker out of the meeting venue. 405 

 406 

 407 

Section 3. All resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 408 

 409 

Section 4. This resolution shall become effective upon its adoption.  410 

 411 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner 08 seconded by 08, 412 

and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 413 

 414 

Mayor Betty Resch   415 

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson 416 

Commissioner Sarah Malega  417 

Commissioner Christopher McVoy  418 

Commissioner Kim Stokes  419 

 420 

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on this 421 

___ day of ______________ 2022. 422 

 423 

 424 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 425 

 426 

 427 

By: ___________________________  428 

Betty Resch, Mayor 429 

 430 

ATTEST: 431 

 432 

 433 

_________________________ 434 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk  435 

 436 


	Top
	B.	Presentation by Suits for Seniors
	Presentation

	E.	Stormwater Flooding Presentation by the Water Utilities Director
	Water Utilities Presentation

	A.	12/22/21 AWS minutes
	DRAFT 122221 AWS minutes

	B.	01/04/22 RM minutes
	DRAFT 010422 RM minutes

	A.	Confirmation of Chair and Vice Chair to the CRA Board
	CRA Chair Nominations Staff Report
	CRA Memo

	B.	Resolution No. 05-2022 DLIS 21-ARPA-16 Grant Agreement
	DLIS 21-ARPA-16 Grant Agreement Staff Report
	Resolution 05-2022
	Grant Agreement

	C.	Resolution No. 06-2022 - adopting Lake Okeechobee operation manual
	Lake Okeechobee Staff Report
	Resolution 06-2022
	PBC LOC Resolution

	D.	Final Change Order to Foster Marine for D3 Outfall Project
	Foster Marine Staff Report
	Change Order 2 - final

	A.	Work Order #8 with the Paving Lady
	Paving Lady Staff Report
	Work Order 8
	17th Ave N - aerial
	21st Ave N - aerial

	B.	Resolution No. 07-2022 - Authorize ARPA Good Jobs Challenge Application
	ARPA Good Jobs Challenge Staff Report
	Resolution 07-2022

	C.	Resolution No. 08-2022 - amending the Rules and Procedures of Commission meetings
	Rules of Procedure Staff Report
	Resolution 08-2022

	Bottom

